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DISPOSAL OF ABANDONED VEHICLES AND WHITE
GOODS (C.C. No. 05-135)

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. The Public Works Committee is now in
session. At this time I would like to introduce the Members of the Public Works
and Transportation [sic] Members. I do have Member Carroll, Member Mateo,
Member Hokama, and my Vice-Chair Member Molina. Also with us is our staff
people, Lance Taguchi as well as Scott Jensen. Also with us is Yvette Bantilan,
and representing Corporation Counsel is ... Traci Fujita Villarosa. Sorry, early
in the morning. And then Public Works Director Milton Arakawa.
Members, also sitting out in the audience from HMR, Hawaii Metal Recycling
Company, is James Banigan, as well as Rene Mansho. We do have Jan Dapitan
from Community Work Day. Also from Honolulu is Steven Chang. He's the
Program Manager for the Department of Health Solid Waste. Also Herb
Matayoshi [sic], Program Chief, and Dr. Lorrin Pang. We do have also in the
audience Captain Fontaine, as well as our Finance Director Kalbert Young and
DMV Manager Mr. Vila.
Members, we do have one item on the agenda, but before I call the item, is there
any public testimony? There's no public testimony. Is anyone out in the
audience would like to testify? Now is the time to testify. Okay, I'll leave public
testimony open for another maybe ten minutes.
Okay, Members, again, today we have one item on the agenda, Public Works 11,
which is dispose of all, of abandoned vehicles and white goods. This is a result of
County Communication No. 05-135, transmitted by our Council member from
Molokai, Danny Mateo, relating to disposal of abandoned vehicles and white
goods.
Since we don't have any public testimony--and before I go any further, this
morning, what I'd like to do is focus on the Public Works Department plans to
address the current situation that we have here in Maui County. We'd like to hear
also from the Department in regards to the white goods project that was
completed a couple of weeks ago. I understand it was very successful.
So with that, Members, I'd like to tum over the microphone to
Mr. Milton Arakawa, the Deputy of ... not the Deputy, but the Director of Public
Works and Transportation. Milton.
MR. ARAKAWA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. If it's okay with the Committee, I'll go over
some of the details of Appliance Recycling Day, which took place over the
Memorial Day weekend. And then we can open that up for questions and then I
can go over a later status on abandoned and derelict vehicles.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: That would be fine.
MR. ARAKAWA: As far as our Appliance Recycling Day, originally this was planned
to take place on Saturday, May 28, as a one-day event at the War Memorial
Stadium parking lot. However, prior to the event, we received calls from a
number of people and organizations that had been holding on to multiple white
goods. These are organizations like Community Work Day who had been
accepting white goods because there were no other alternatives available, as well
as large landowners on whose land a number of white goods had been dumped.
We were concerned that if these were accepted on the, at the Saturday event, the
line of vehicles would grind to a halt while the, while these larger trucks with
many white goods were unloaded. So actually we started accepting these on the
Thursday and Friday prior to the Saturday event. And on Saturday itself, we
accepted many of the smaller loads, and as you knew, as you know the response
to the event was tremendous. The line moved steadily and slowly snaked through
the War Memorial parking lot, at times backing up on Kanaloa A venue and
Kaahumanu A venue.
The crew there basically placed Freon white goods in separate containers from the
non-freon white goods. And the white goods, which could not be placed into the
containers on that day were stockpiled in the stadium parking lot. The Public
Works and Parks crew were back on Sunday, the next day, to place the white
goods in the containers. And Monday, May 30, was a holiday, so the crews
finished up the packing of the containers on Tuesday, May 31 st . And all of the
containers were transported off the War Memorial parking lot in time for the
Baldwin and Maui High School graduations, which occurred the following
weekend.
I know some of you had some questions regarding the financials regarding this
event, and 1'd like to go over that a bit with the Committee. This event will be
funded through a Fiscal Year '05 supplemental budget amendment of $825,000,
which was intended for derelict vehicle and white goods processing. As you
know, we have awarded an $825,000 contract to Kitagawa's Towing to do
derelict vehicle and white goods processing. So what we are intending to do is
that the monies that are needed for Appliance Recycling Day will be taken from
the $825,000 supplemental budget funding, and these monies will be replaced
with Highway Beautification Funds, which can technically only be used for
derelict vehicle processes.
I would note that the, the final cost for the event have not been calculated;
however, I can give the Committee a rough estimation at this juncture. There
were a total of 57 containers of white goods, which are filled over the several days
of the event. The average cost of processing per container is calculated to be
roughly $2,100, and this includes transporting the empty containers to the War
Memorial site, all the expenses to stage and pack the containers, the transport to
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the harbor, shipping to Honolulu, and the transport in Honolulu to either the freon
white goods processor and/or the metals recycler.
I should mention that the containers with freon white goods went to a freon
recycling firm in Honolulu, who would vacate the freon from the appliances and
then ship it to a metal recycler: The non-freon containers were shipped straight
from the docks to the metal recycler, which was Hawaii Metal Recycling or
HMR.
The rough total cost for Appliance Recycling Day would be roughly 57 containers
multiplied by $2,100 per container or $119,700. The total number of white goods
collected was calculated at 4,579 units, so there was an average of about 80 white
goods placed in each container. The average cost of the processing per white
good came out to approximately $26 per unit, and this was derived by dividing
$119,700 by 4,579 units.
Appliance Recycling Day was intended as a one-time event to deal with a
significant portion of the pent-up demand and to follow up, the Department has
started Saturday pick-ups of white goods by area. And we are asking that people
call certain numbers to schedule their curbside pick-up. And for the Upcountry
region, the public is asked to call 572-3958 to schedule their pick-ups. And for
Central, South and West Maui, the number to call is 270-7452. And the intent
here is to pick up approximately 100 white goods per Saturday with our County
crews. We have already started doing that on that Saturday pick-up, and I would
like to note that there still appears to be a significant demand out there for white
goods recycling. And we already have reservations for white goods pick-up
presently booked until September.
So with that, I'll stop to see if the Committee has any questions about Appliance
Recycling Day and white goods in general.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Arakawa. Members, any questions for the
Director in regards to the white goods project? Member Molina.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. Good morning, Mr. Arakawa. Thank
you for that update. Regarding white goods, you mentioned it's roughly, you
calculated based on that recycling day at $26 per unit. Was at any time the
Administration considering some type of maybe a disposal fee because there
seems to be so much white goods out there and I guess nowadays people look at
rather than getting your appliance fixed, it's more like get rid of it, upgrade, get a
new one, which sort of causes an increase in the amount of white goods that are
sitting out there. And is also you mentioned that there's a lot of people waiting
out there to have their white goods picked up. Is this causing, having an impact
on your personnel? Are you possibly looking at hiring additional personnel
because of the number of appliances out there that will be needed to be picked
up?
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MR. ARAKAWA: At this point, we haven't really talked in detail about establishing a
cost to, to assess individual people who, individuals who want to dispose of these
white goods. It is something that could be considered, of course. In terms of the,
our cost, the County's cost as far as the pick up, it will be done on Saturday, and
the white goods pick-up is done on an overtime basis. So as far as the cost for
that overtime, we did ask the Council for an additional amount to cover that
overtime for Fiscal Year '06. And for the overtime cost that will be incurred for
this last month of the Fiscal Year, '05 Fiscal Year, we are basically using
whatever savings that occurred because we basically didn't have this bulky-item
pick-up for a number of months.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Just for your information, Member Molina, we have budgeted I
think $34,000 for Fiscal Year '06 for white goods pick-up during that time.
Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. Mr. Arakawa, good
morning.
MR. ARAKAWA: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: I've listened intently in your presentation to us, and the
real simple question is, so what is the Department's long-range plan in dealing
specifically with white goods for now? Because the Saturday pick-ups alone is
not sufficient. I think the Department knew going into the containered program in
getting all these white appliances out, I think the Department knew that there
really was a lot of white goods out there that needed to be collected. One,
because we've seen on the side of the roads, we've seen down the beaches. So
what is the Department's long-range plan in dealing with these things, instead of
having to, you know, like do a Saturday only project?
MR. ARAKAWA: Councilmember Mateo, the long-term plan is basically as it has for
several months now. We've been trying to get a private vendor on-line to actually
process abandoned and derelict vehicles as well as white goods. And I can go
into that in more detail in the next phase of the presentation. And that vendor, of
course, is Kitagawa's Towing.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No, I'll wait ... that's a good one. I'll wait until the
derelict vehicles.
But can you, again, reiterate the, that $825,000, the
Department's use of that monies? Because it was apparently ... was that the
same monies that was actually earmarked for the Kitagawa contract?
MR. ARAKAWA: Yes.

PWOSI13105

PageS

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And-MR. ARAKAWA: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And in order to deal with the cost incurred during this,
the prior week's shipping out, that monies was used as the source?
MR. ARAKA W A: Yeah, what we intend to do is basically change the source of funding
for the Kitagawa contract, and since a great, significant number of white goods
are currently, or have been processed, we're going to use that, a portion of the
$125,000 for white goods processing, and we will direct Kitagawa to basically
pick up more derelict vehicles than what we originally planned.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: What the Department originally planned in that
particular contract was 1,000 vehicles or so, and it also, did it also include white
goods?
MR. ARAKAWA: Yes, it did.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So where will the Department get the additional monies
to cover that, the cost that has already been incurred?
MR. ARAKAWA: Well, the white goods have already been processed so that's why I'm
saying the Kitagawa contract would, we would emphasize more picking up of
derelict vehicles than white goods. But we'll have to see what the overall demand
would be and then we can manage the contract accordingly.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So the picking up of white goods would be both
Kitagawa and the County?
MR. ARAKAWA: Well, the white goods that we are picking up now, prior to Kitagawa
being on-line, will be taken to Island Movers, and they will be packing it into a
container and then that gets shipped directly to Honolulu to either ... well, to the
refrigerant recycling, which is the vendor in Honolulu to take care of the freon
white goods. And then, because of the relatively small numbers that are collected
per weekend, both the Freon white goods and the non-freon white goods are
packed together. So there will be some sorting that will need to be taken, taken
place at the refrigerant recycling. And then from there, the non-freon, after the
Freon is vacated from the appliances and the non-freon goods basically gets
shipped to HMR for metal recycling.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And the cost, therefore, would still be about $2,100 per
container?
MR. ARAKAWA: No, the cost will be higher.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Higher like a ballparking it, double the cost?
MR. ARAKAWA: You know, I don't have that number right now with me, but it will be
higher.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, thank you. I'll yield. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Mateo. Members, Member Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. Question for Mr. Arakawa. We, I
still notice Hana that for the vehicles and white goods it's closed so nobody can
take anything down there. We don't have that much coming in every day,
obviously, but is there any way that we could still drop off vehicles and white
goods over there? Because if not, I mean, it's really difficult.
MR. ARAKAWA: The scrap metal in Hana is actually being handled via a separate
contract.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: I know, that's why I'm asking you if we can open
that.
MR. ARAKAWA: I'm sorry, Councilman Carroll, I'm not familiar with the details of
that particular contract right off hand. I've asked our Solid Waste Division Chief
to be here, but he had an emergency to attend to. But he should be here later in
this meeting and I can try to have him respond to your question then.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Carroll. Members, any more questions in
regards to the white goods program that was just completed? Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: To Mr. Director, how many employees was, were you
utilizing May 28, please? Approximately?
MR. ARAKAW A: The crew that actually did the sorting and the packing I believe was
either nine or ten employees.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: That, that's volunteers or you had work assignments
for those employees?
MR. ARAKAWA: No, these are employees from our Solid Waste Division, and also
there were some employees from Parks, which were involved. They were paid
overtime pay to do that. In addition, there were a number of volunteers helping
with the stockpiling and traffic control and, you know, other duties with regard to
the event.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. We appropriate quite a bit of money, hundreds
of thousands I think right now for Workline options for departments. Your
Department considered utilizing Workline crews to assist you in this endeavor? Is
that a possibility or that's not allowed?
MR. ARAKAWA: I'm looking at Mr. Young, but I believe this issue came up during the
budget and perhaps you can clarify that, but I believe there were some-COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I just bring that up because Parks uses them. You
know, other departments use them. I'm sure your Department uses them for
certain non-technical or, you know, expertise required type of assignments. So
I'm wondering if this would not be maybe something more appropriate or
something more affordable for all of us.
MR. ARAKAWA: Well, from my standpoint, I mean, we can certainly look at that some
more, I believe we broached that issue previously with our Solid Waste folks, and
the use of the Workline crew on an extended basis did raise some union issues,
which we would need to resolve. But, I mean, it, it's something we can certainly
look at as far as trying to maximize the resources from a County standpoint.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And I would agree with you on the collective
bargaining issue if this was a long time or semi-permanent program. But our
understanding as councilors is that this is going to be a contracted out
responsibility. So it would, you know, for me to tie it to collective bargaining,
you know, is kind of difficult at this time for me to see that, that connection.
MR. ARAKAWA: Well, perhaps I should clarify. The intent, once Kitagawa comes on
line is that he will still do the white goods processing, but the pick up, the
curbside pick up of the white goods would still be handled by the County crews.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay, I guess maybe in another meeting you can
inform this Committee and Chairman Pontanilla of those exact details. So my
question to you is, regarding the $825,000 contract, if the County issued and
executed a contract, why isn't the contractor providing the service?
MR. ARAKAWA: Okay-COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And I'm assuming you've encumbered the money,
right?
MR. ARAKAWA: We've awarded the contract, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So the money's encumbered.
MR. ARAKAWA: Actually, Mr. Chair, I can go into that in more detail.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, I leave it to your decision whether to
continue now or let Mr. Arakawa finish up-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yeah, before we go into that, I have one question in regards to
white goods. I know that particular day that we did the program, we had an
opportunity to utilize some of the non-profits to do this work. Can you make
mention, as far as what non-profit organization came out to help the County in
regards to the white goods pick-up? And do we have any more opportunities later
in utilizing, for example, Community Work Day people?
MR. ARAKAWA: Well, the main organization that I'm aware of that really helped us
was Community Work Day, as far as getting the white goods to us. But there
were many, many volunteers for the event who, you know, we really should thank
for their efforts in getting the white goods to us. They, they included a number of,
you know, individuals that, actually, held on to the white goods for a number of
months. And it really showed that people were trying to comply with our
directive to hold on to it, and when there was this event, there just was a
tremendous demand from many members of the public to provide proper disposal
and recycling of these, these white goods. So there were many, many people to
thank. In fact, the Mayor himself donated something like $800 of his own cash to
basically pay for lunches for the volunteers that showed up on that day. So, you
know, I just want to mention that and, of course, a number of County employees
also volunteered their time for the event as well.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I guess now we can go, you know ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, one last one on white goods specifically.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: There are some providers, let's say, that sell you the
appliance or do installation and for a fee take the old appliance away. Where are
these people taking those old appliances? Either the, a Sears or, you know,
whoever it be. Do you know?
MR. ARAKAWA: I'm not familiar with all of the appliance sales; however, I am
familiar with the Sears' case. In their particular instance, they have charged a fee
to the purchasers for the disposal and recycling of the white goods. And they
have contracted a separate container to be shipped to Honolulu. I'm not certain if
all of the dealers have done this as well, but I know in the Sears' case they have.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. It's better than ... how is it comparable to our
program, cost-wise? Do you have some indication to give us a comment this
morning, Mr. Director?
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MR. ARAKAWA: The cost that Sears incurs for the disposal and processing is roughly
about $60 per white good.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. For everything?
MR. ARAKAWA: For everything, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Just to reiterate what you just said,
yeah, I did have some work done by Sears and it cost me about 60 bucks. Okay,
Mr. Director, if you could go directly into abandoned vehicles now.
MR. ARAKAWA: Okay, Mr. Chair, first, let me go over a little background over this
whole abandoned vehicle problem. The most recent request for proposals was
issued by the County back in October of 2004. And at that time, we received six
proposals; however, only one proposal, the proposal from Kitagawa's Towing
presented the paperwork showing the necessary permit and the zoning
compliance. At that time, Kitagawa's Towing proposed to process vehicles at an
Alamaha Street location and store vehicles at a different site on Hobron Street.
Then a protest was filed against Kitagawa's Towing alleging that a Special
Management Area Use Permit was required on the Hobron Street site. Although
the Planning Department initially determined that no SMA compliance was
needed, they then changed their decision to now require an SMA assessment.
Kitagawa's Towing then prepared an SMA assessment, which was then circulated
to a number of agencies for review.
Since the Hobron Street site is located next to Kanaha Pond, the U.S. Fish and
Wildlife Service responded with critical comments about having a derelict vehicle
storage yard next to a wetland, primarily because of the potential environmental
impacts that could occur. Moreover, the Fire Department also had a serious
concern regarding the storage of derelict vehicles adjacent to the jet fuel tanks.
Subsequent to that, the Planning Department then responded that they would be
unable to further process the SMA assessment. Upon hearing that, Kitagawa's
Towing then decided to utilize only the Alamaha Street site for processing and
storage of derelict vehicles. The Alamaha Street site is zoned M-2, which is the
proper zoning for processing, and it is outside of the County's SMA.
The protest was then dismissed and all of the necessary applications were
submitted to the State Department of Health. The County of Maui then awarded
an $825,000 contract to Kitagawa's Towing to process derelict vehicles and white
goods. And this award took place in April of 2005.
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The DOH, after this award, the DOH then informed Kitagawa's Towing that his
P-6 form contained the signature of the master lessee; however, DOH required the
signature of the landowner, which in this particular case is the Weinberg
Foundation. And I should note that DOH generally holds the landowner
ultimately responsible for the clean up of any environmental impacts, which may
occur as a result of the derelict vehicle processing operation.
Kitagawa's Towing then sought the approval of the Weinberg Foundation on this
P-6 form but was initially denied. Kitagawa's Towing requested that the
Weinberg Foundation reconsider their decision, and as a condition of their
approval, Kitagawa's would carry an insurance policy, which would clean up the
site should Kitagawa himself fail to do so.
At this juncture, Kitagawa's Towing has submitted their application to an
insurance underwriter and the application is currently being considered. And I
just talked with Mike Kitagawa on Friday, and he is hoping that a decision can be
made on this issue by the end of this month.
As far as getting his site and the equipment on-line ... (CHANGE TAPE) ... a
loading dock and a concrete pad at the Alamaha Street site in order to comply
with all of the operational requirements of the DOH. The baler he intends to use
was recently on Lanai, as we understand, and the brakes needed to be repaired on
Lanai before it can be barged to Honolulu and then to Kahului. And Kitagawa is
anticipating that this will be accomplished within the next couple weeks.
Now, once he starts operation, Kitagawa believes that he can process, bale and
pack about 30 cars a day. And, you know, I want to note here for the
Committee's information that we believe that Kitagawa's Towing has been
working very diligently to try and comply with all of the applicable regulations.
At this point, it looks like perhaps a month before Kitagawa's Towing can be
operational if all the pieces fall in place. And if not, we are, of course, looking at
more delays.
In the meantime, the Department of Finance has stopped towing of abandoned
and derelict vehicles from the roadsides because there is no space currently at the
County storage yard, which is located at the Central Maui baseyard. And, as we
all know, the abandoned and derelict vehicles continue to pile up, and it has
become an eyesore upon our landscape and it's a roadside hazard. And at times
it's a magnet for additional trash and it's causing damage to our image as a
desirable visitor destination. Therefore, we feel we must set up a temporary
emergency storage site immediately. Should Kitagawa's Towing be able to
process vehicles in one month, then the vehicles from this site can be cleared as
Kitagawa is ready to accept them. However, if Kitagawa is delayed or is not able
to obtain the necessary approvals, then this storage site will provide additional
find, time to find a more permanent solution.
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And the site we have in mind is a portion of the old Puunene Airport site, and, as
you know, the Council recently passed a resolution accepting the ZOO-plus acre
site from the State of Hawaii. And we are looking at approximately two acres of
existing paved area to set up an unprocessed derelict vehicle storage area. The
specific area would need to be fenced, and we intend to do that.
So operationally, the intent is to transfer derelict vehicles from the County storage
yard in the Central Maui baseyard to the Old Puunene Airport site. The
Department of Finance can then resume towing of abandoned vehicle, derelict
vehicles from the roadsides to the Central Maui baseyard. And also, alternatively,
derelict vehicles may also be towed directly from the roadside to the Old Puunene
Airport site.
And we would need to seek after-the-fact permits for the storage use, and we're
anticipating that the permit process could take anywhere between six to eight
months to obtain.
In the longer term, we have asked for and the Council has approved a $400,000
appropriation to do the planning and design for an abandoned and derelict
vehicles storage and processing site at the Old Puunene Airport.
As you know, in the current situation, the County needs to depend on private
vendors to process derelict vehicles. The Old Puunene Airport site will help the
County to establish site control where we would be responsible for obtaining the
necessary approvals. This would allow derelict vehicle processing in the future to
become more predictable. And I guess at this point, I'll stop and answer any
questions, which Committee may have.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Member Hokama.

Thank

you,

Director.

Members,

any

questions?

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: For Director Arakawa, do you have a site pretty much
determined for the permanent facility at Puunene?
MR. ARAKAWA: No, not exactly. You know, the resolution was recently passed.
There are sites within the property which are paved and some which are not
paved. And we would need to go through the process of trying to figure out
which of those areas would be suitable for our purposes. And also there are a
number of other organizations, as well as County departments, who are interested
in using the Old Puunene Airport site. So these issues need to be worked out
before we can permanently select a site.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Well, I heard an urgency in your comments to us,
Mr. Director, so I think some of the details of shared use we can work out because
the Council is going to need to make some policy decisions. But, nonetheless,
zoning needs to be processed, and, you know, if you were ready I was going to
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ask Chairman Pontanilla to consider working with Mr. Carroll, our Land Use
Chairman, to have the Council request a zoning change, whereby a clock by
ordinance starts ticking and allows us to timely process this request. I prefer not
to wait, personally, because knowing how some of the other parties may feel for
their needs, could be a long, drawn-out process. And I'm not willing to wait
much longer, since we all deal with the visual impacts of the derelict program. So
that's my suggestion to you, Mr. Director.
But one question, are we responsible for vehicles on State property? And if so,
when did we accept that responsibility?
MR. ARAKA W A: My understand is that, yes, we have towed vehicles on State
highways. As far as when that occurred, I would defer to the Finance
Department. Maybe I can ... if it's okay with the Committee, I'll ask Mr. Young
or Mr. Vila from the Finance Department to answer that question.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Young, or Mr. Vila, or both.
(long pause)
MR. VILA:
Good morning, Mr. Chair, Council Members.
Lito Vila, DMV
Administrator. I've taken over the Program since I think 1995, 1994, '95 when
the function was passed over to us. And since that time, we have been towing
from any public roadway and State roadways.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: What do you mean passed on to the County?
MR. VILA: Well, before ... not passed on to the County be ... when I took the Program
over, Finance was only responsible for the storage and auctioning of the
abandoned vehicles and declaring them derelicts and getting them to processing.
Coordination of the towing from the roadside was originally done by the Public
Works Department, and the Police Department's role of the initial response to the
site continues to be at this day. So back in mid-1990s, Public Works were
removed from the towing aspects, the actual removal from the roadways, and that
was taken over by the Finance Department.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I'm not concerned about the departments of the
County. I'm, my question is when did the County accept responsibility over State
property to take care of derelict vehicles?
MR. VILA: I'm-COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: By what mechanism did the authority occur?
MR. VILA: On Chapter 290, we, for the, the Highway Beautification Fund was being
used and for the purpose of that is to remove vehicles from, abandoned vehicles
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from public roadways under that guise. We have not actually gone into, I've
never seen an agreement where we entered into agreement with the State saying
that we shall remove, on behalf of the State, any vehicles abandoned on State
highways, per se. But we have been using the Highway Beautification Fund,
which is slated for that purpose.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: It's County funds. By County residence for County
roads. I'm done, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Hokama. In regards to the Puunene
Airport site, I would like to do, if the Members doesn't have any objection, is to
call the Programs Manager from the Department of Health, Solid Waste. If you
could come and if we should pass something in regards to the Old Puunene
Airport, would there be any objections from the Department of Health in regards
to a move like that? So if I can have Mr. Steven Chang from the Department
respond.
(long pause)
MR. CHANG: Good morning. Yeah, we've just been advised of the strategy of
selecting the Puunene Airfield as a potential site, and I don't think we have any
significant objections to it, provided that the facility is able to submit a complete
application. Primarily, it has appropriate land use and approval of owners and is
designed in such a way that it's going to be successful in mitigating some of the
issues related to the stockpiling and storage of vehicles.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any question for Mr. Chang? Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:
Mr. Chang.

Chairman, thank you very much.

Good morning,

MR. CHANG: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: I guess a few minutes ago you heard the Director's
chronology of how we're going to address our derelict needs via the Kitagawa
vendor or the operator. I guess in listening to that particular review, are there any
additional DOH concerns or issues that needs to be met so we can, in fact, move
on instead of, you know, reading, meeting additional obstacles down the road?
MR. CHANG: This is regarding to the Kitagawa site at Alamaha?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Correct.
MR. CHANG: The current issue right now is that when we initially reviewed the permit,
we saw it, it was identified that the owner and operator was a joint between HRT
and CG Development. Then we issued the permit. Then we found out later that
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CG Development is not the owner. They signed on as the landowner. And so that
is the main issue. HRT, as the landowner, needs to sign off on the approval so
that the permit can be valid.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So other than getting the final approval of the original
of the actual landowner, there are no additional requirements that DOH is looking
at?
MR. CHANG: There are requirements in the permit requiring him to construct certain
pieces of equipment or have pieces of equipment on-site and I believe have some
structural things built in order so that he can process the vehicles.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And then at this particular point, both the County and
the State and specifically your Department is actually working together to be sure
that this particular site does open?
MR. CHANG: We are, you know, right now, this is the closest thing we have in really
processing vehicles here. We only have one other facility that's stockpiling,
storing vehicles and that's really not sufficient.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. And at this point, then, the Department of Health
is making every effort possible to see that a facility like this on Maui gets, gets
accomplished? Gets open?
MR. CHANG: Yeah, at this point in time, unfortunately, it rests upon the landowner, and
they, for them to decide if they're going to allow this activity. It seems like
there's been movement, some efforts, some good faith efforts by Mr. Kitagawa to
satisfy the landowner's concerns.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you very much. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Thank you, Member Mateo.
Before I call you,
Member Molina, 1'd just like to ask Mr. Chang a question regards to the Puunene
site. Because the permit process takes so long, as far as the interim, do you see
any objections as far as once Mr. (inaudible) says, yeah, okay, let's go with a
zoning change, on an interim where we could process, not process but take these
abandoned vehicles to the Old Puunene Airport site and then follow up with the
permit process. Do you have any, does the Department has any problems with
that?
MR. CHANG: Well, you know, as a Department we look for a permanent facility prior
to having an activity occur. And we have given notice to the County at the, for
the storage of vehicles at the old Waikapu landfill. And so I have not yet
discussed with our Deputy Director, but I believe the same conditions would
exist. Obviously, we'd like to see it be permanent first before it begins to operate.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yeah, I know Mr. Kitagawa is the so-called vendor, but, you
know, we're looking for an alternative just in case, you know ... actually, we're
looking for help from the Department in regards to having some of these
processed. Not streamlined and not even overlooked but giving the County a
chance to remove those abandoned vehicles and store it in an area like the Old
Puunene Airport.
MR. CHANG: I know we've expedited two permits in the past--the Kitagawa site at
Hobron and also the site at Alamaha--and they were issued one last October and
one this year. And I guess the main situation happened is that because, as a
condition of this permit, Mr. Kitagawa was supposed to do some work at the
Hobron Lane site, which is near the refuge that triggered some actions requiring
SMA. And that basically caused that to go south on us. But, you know, we felt
that it was a viable site and it could be done, but I guess there was significant
public concerns that caused withdrawal for the SMA.
So, you know, we're prepared to do our job and expedite. We've, like I said,
we've expedited permits. We've recognized, we've tried to push permits that
come to us. We've responded to applicants when they're, when their application
be incomplete. Try to get them to put together the corrected material, and, you
know, we're still waiting on some. We've gotten recent applications from SOS
Maui on a piece of ago land on Central MauL It's a very preliminary permit
application, and it does require a zoning change and landowner and County land
use approvals. So we're not sure where that's going, but that's another site that
has been in contact with our office.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you for that response, Mr. Chang. Member Molina.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Mr. Chairman. You beat me to the punch
with that question. I had that for Mr. Chang, but since I have the mike I got
something else for you. Staying on the Old Puunene site, now just to, just for the
record to set it straight, you don't see a problem with the Department's plan to use
that site as a temporary storage area. Because the only reason I bring that up is if
there is a possibility that because we're in this crisis, we could be trying to solve
this crisis by breaking the law. I don't want that to happen, so I just want to know
from you here today, do we have, what kind of recommendations you would
make to the County so we don't break any laws if we use this site. For example,
you talk about Mr. Kitagawa and the recommendations you made for his site.
What kind of recommendations would you make for the County to use the
Puunene site?
MR. CHANG: Well, again, the issues here is that under our rules, Solid Waste rules,
you're required to obtain a permit and prior to storage of vehicles. And that
doesn't exist right now, so that is a violation of our rules, as is the conditions of
the Waikapu landfill. The County has, after the fact, did submit an application to
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us, and it's pending some land use issues there also. So we're kind of in that
situation, the same, similar situation as Waikapu.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: So if were today to go ahead and start storing vehicles, in
essence we would be subjecting ourselves to fines? I mean, you know, because it
was mentioned that we have to get after-the-fact permits.
MR. CHANG: Well, again, you know, it would be at risk, at the County's risk, right, to
move forward on that.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: And how much would those fines be per day?
MR. CHANG: I don't like to cite penalties because, you know, whenever I cite a
penalty, you know, maximum penalties under State law is like $10,000 a day.
And, you know, when I throw those numbers out, people immediately say, well,
they're going to get fined $10,000 a day. But, again, you know, we look at the
conditions leading to that situation.
The key thing for us is we're looking for proper management of vehicles. We do
not want to see activities that could result in contamination of a property, that, you
know, there's no long-term commitment to maintain. And with abandoned
vehicles, you know, there's always a concern about transmission fluids, them
contaminating the ground and then when you go into processing, again, even
more potential for hazards to occur.
So, you know, we're looking for a permit application that addresses all these
issues so we know that there is a good game plan to deal with the normal
activities that occur from processing vehicles or storing vehicles.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Just as a curiosity, Mr. Chang, you know, we have car
dealers and large car rental companies that have storage. They're required to get
permits from you, too, to store those for most time new cars? But they're storing
50, 100, 1,000 cars all over Kahului by the airport.
MR. CHANG: Not new cars because-COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: What's the difference? They're still storing. They
still got fluids. They still have the capability of leaking. They're in a SMA area.
MR. CHANG: Well, they are being maintained. They are new cars for sale. Our
program focuses on once it's determined no longer to be usable and it becomes a
waste. So our Solid Waste program focuses on the disposal aspect.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So they are fuel storage?
MR. CHANG: I beg your pardon?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: They're fueling the cars.
MR. CHANG: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: They're servicing the cars.
MR. CHANG: But as a in-use operation.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So they have a different permit they're required to get
from you?
MR. CHANG: They're not required to get a permit because they're not dealing with
solid waste, okay. Once they decide to dispose of those vehicles and take it to a
disposal facility, our focus is on that disposal facility permitting that.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. I'm done.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any more questions for Mr. Chang?
Mr. Chang, thank you very much for being here this morning.

If not,

MR. CHANG: I'm here for further questions, too-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yeah, thank you. Members, any more questions? Member
Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. This would be for the
Director. So as we just heard, Mr. Arakawa, I guess also through your
presentation as well earlier, then Mr. Kitagoa [sic], Mr. Kitagawa has in fact
already initiated the process via the requirement of insurance to meet the
landlord's request, the actual landlord's request. Therefore, at this particular
point, he's virtually, what? Just pending a final approval?
MR. ARAKA WA: Our understanding is that he has submitted an application to the
insurance underwriter and the underwriter is evaluating the application now. And
that's the extent of what we know. Of course, if the insurance is approved, then
he would have to take it to the Weinberg people and then if the insurance
provisions are adequate, then the Weinberg organization signs the P-6 Permit and
then DOH issues their Solid Waste Permit to Mr. Kitagawa. That would be the
hope for sequence of events.
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And those sequence of events would occur

MR. ARAKAWA: No, we are hoping that Mr. Kitagawa can obtain all of these
approvals, hopefully by the end of the month. End of this month.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Okay, thank you and to follow, to follow up on
the Puunene temporary facility, I guess I have a concern about a temporary
facility using taxpayers' money when--and I'm hoping that that facility is, in part,
part of the Department's long-range plan. Because it would seem fruitless to
spend "x" amount of monies for a temporary fix knowing that, you know, we
might need either more than two acres, we might need more specified permits
because of specific use on the property and, you know, I don't know if we're just
reacting or are we planning? Could you comment, Mr. Director?
MR. ARAKAW A: Council member Mateo, I think you raise a good point, and we will
certainly try to make sure that whatever monies that would be expended on a
temporary facility would, in fact, be usable when the permanent facility comes on
line. I mean, that would be the optimum situation, so we'll certainly keep that at
the top of our mind.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, Chairman, I'll yield. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Mateo. You bring out a very interesting
point. About two years ago, you know, we had conversation regards to a
permanent site at the Old Puunene Airport. And I think Member, not Member but
Chairman Hokama's idea in regards to if we're in a dire need of having an M-2
zoned parcel at the Old Puunene Airport, that, you know, I take up his challenge
in regards to the Council going forward looking for a permanent site at the Old
Puunene Airport. And if we do need zoning change, you know, we go through
the process. You know, we're here to help the County, not hinder the County, in
trying to get rid of all these abandoned vehicles on the side of the road.
Members, any more questions for the Chair? Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I don't know if, Mr. Director, you're aware of the
land use zoning currently at the Old Puunene site?
MR. ARAKAW A: I believe the State land use designation or classification is
Agricultural, and the community plan designates it as a Project District, and the
zoning is County Agricultural. So we would need to have State Land Use District
Boundary Amendment and a Change in Zoning.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay, which, which, as long as it's less than 15 acres,
we're able to do all the reclassification, community plan and zoning?
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MR. ARAKAW A: At the County level, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Yeah, yeah. Okay.
MR. ARAKAWA: I should also add, there may be some requirements relating to an
Environmental Assessment, which also would need to be done.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. I would think so, yes ... Corporation Counsel
since the County is initiating this request that an Assessment would be in order.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: I'm sorry. Could you repeat the question?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Since the County more than likely will initiate the
zoning change, land use changes, an Assessment automatically is required?
MR. ARAKAWA: I can answer that question. Actually, the trigger for the
Environmental Assessment would be the use of State or County lands or funds,
and it wouldn't be the change in zoning, per se, that would trigger it.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So it would be a requirement?
MR. ARAKAWA: Yes, it would.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Are there other M-2 zoned properties currently
available for consideration on a temporary basis?
MR. ARAKAW A: Some months ago when we got into this whole pickle of abandoned
vehicles, we did meet ... in fact we have a map of the Central, whole Central
Maui area, which shows M-l and M-2 zoned lands. And we did approach a
number of landowners regarding some lands that could be made available for
storage purposes, at least at that time. And I can say, generally, there were some,
some alternatives, which were placed before us to proceed; however, all of those
lands that were made available by landowners required permits. Whether it was a
change in zoning or State Special Use Permit. So, of course, if you, if we had to
get a change in zoning for a storage facility, we're looking at a minimum of a
one-year processing time, and-COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: But I'm looking at already zoned land. Appropriately
zoned property, Mr. Director. There are none?
MR. ARAKAWA: We did not have any offers to either sell or lease us M-2 zoned lands.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So we had no cooperation from landowners?
MR. ARAKAWA: Well, I think that the landowners that we had approached were all
very polite, and they really wanted to work with us. However, they, like the
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Weinberg people are very concerned that in the end, the landowner is responsible
for any clean up. So if at all possible, you know, they would prefer not to have
this type of facility on their property. I mean, that's basically ...
~OUNCILMEMBER

HOKAMA:

But the nature of M-2 zoning is heavy industrial.

Automatic.
MR. ARAKAWA: That's correct. That's correct. So basically the choice is whether or
not, you know, to enter into an agreement with a private owner or basically
having the County have site control. And we're basically proposing to the
Council that we go to the Old Puunene Airport site, where we can have the site
control and then we would then probably deal with a private vendor and regulate
that private vendor to provide the services that we need.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay, thank you, Mr. Director. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any more questions for the Director? I do have one.
In regards to abandoned vehicles, what is the cost to the County to process one
vehicle?
MR. ARAKAW A: The contract that we have with Kitagawa is at $345 per vehicle to
process it, and that's, you know, the entire cost. Basically taking it out of our
hands.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Thank you.
questions ... (CHANGE TAPE) ...

Member

Carroll,

questions?

No

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: ... maybe the Director can tell me how, how we got
from $50 to remove or process a vehicle a year ago to $345 now.
MR. ARAKAWA: As far as the history of the contract, I should probably defer to the
Department of Finance. But I should also mention, as you've probably gathered
from today's presentation, that the processing of derelict vehicles is a highly
regulated industry. Kitagawa's is being put under the microscope to make sure
that he is doing the processing in accordance with all of the applicable regs.
Whether or not that had occurred in previous contracts is subject to question.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Okay, then let me ask Corp. Counsel a question.
Earlier we heard from Finance who said that as long as the road is viewed as
public roadway, yeah, then we're responsible for removing the derelict vehicles
off of that particular roadway. In case in point, the State highway, right. So is
there any differentiation between what is County responsible roadway versus
what is State responsible roadway? Because in the existing State highways, we
don't maintain it. It is done by them. So they maintain, they should also remove.
But if there's no specification on the term "public roadway", then can you just tell
me what we need to do to either, one, determine that, make that determination.
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Whether or not it would be amending the Code to be specific and say, County
public roadway versus State public roadway?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Mr., Mr. Chair, just to clarify, the County is authorized to
remove vehicles on all public highways. We're not mandated. We're not, we
don't, we're not responsible. We're not mandated to remove vehicles off of State
highways, but we're authorized to remove vehicles off of all public highways,
which includes State highways.
In this past legislative session, there were at least one bill, I think, that was
introduced that would authorize the State to remove vehicles off of State
highways, but that bill failed. What the bill that did pass, did I think authorize the
County to remove vehicles off of private, private areas adjacent to public
highways. I guess shoulders, you know, things like that. So while the County can
remove vehicles off of State highways, we don't have to. I guess that's the, just
to clarify.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So because we don't have to, we do so for the sake of
safety of our, our residents. But the impact that we're faced with is the burden of
continuously paying, you know, to, for the removal of vehicles that sit on their
property. Is there any way to force the hand, so the State would pay a share?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Well, I believe that the decision, that in the past decisions
have been made to remove vehicles off of State highways, like you said, for
public safety concerns because a lot of these vehicles could cause, you know,
safety hazards to people driving along the, the major highways, which are
primarily State owned. I, we've had discussions in the past and I had advised,
you know, the Administration that we didn't have to remove vehicles. We could,
I suppose we could only remove vehicles off of County highways. But there was,
again, that concern about safety.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Uh-huh. But would be nice if we would remove the, the
vehicles from State land and be able to put it into State land, instead of putting it,
you know, totally ... the burden is on the County of Maui.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: The counties.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah, so it's just that, you know, I wish there was
something we could do, Chairman, so that when we remove the vehicle off State
property, we'd be able to put it into State property. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Mateo. Very good point. Member Molina.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. Question for Corp. Counsel. As
follow up to Member Mateo's question. So being that we don't have to take the
vehicle off of State highways, State roadways, we do it as, I guess, a public
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service and our concern for safety, can we in essence bill the State, you know, to
get reimbursed? Or would that require some type of legislation here in the
County? Maybe readjust something in our Code?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: We couldn't bill the State to get reimbursement. The
money that the State has authorized the County to collect is the additional, well,
it's the $S additional fee for the vehicle registration. That money goes towards
beautification and abandoned vehicle removal. So if there were, if the County
wanted to seek any other monies from the State, then it would need to be done at
the State level.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: I see, so in other words, we have to lobby our State legislators.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Correct.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: There's no possibility of trying to establish some type of
intergovernmental agreement between the County and the State with regards to
this matter? I mean, it would have to just be all done at the State level, then?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Right. Well, even an intergovernmental agreement would
still require the State's consent, so if that were possible, we would still have to
work with the State on that.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: We couldn't just do it internally in the County.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. I see. Okay, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Molina. Before we take our morning
break, I'd like to, if I may without no objections, to call a representative from
HMR. What I need is some information in regards to, you know, how much they
charge to process a vehicle. At this time, Mr. Banigan.
MR. BANIGAN: Yes, good, good morning, Chairman, Mr. Chairman, Members of the
Council. My name is Jim Banigan. I'm the General Manager of Hawaii Metal
Recycling. Thank you for providing me an opportunity to speak.
I realize that you're under a great deal of stress with regard to what's going on
over here with appliances and abandoned vehicles, but it's not all that bad. The
County stands to gain between $7,000 and $8,000 in payment from HMR for the
scrap metal that you've recycled to us, so there is a little bit of light there. The
cost will reduce somewhat.
I'm open for any questions if anyone ...
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yeah, the question that I had is, you know, for a vehicle, do
you do any vehicle processing directly at your plant? And how much does it
cost?
MR. BANIGAN: We, we have a, we do not actually . . . all right, let's back up.
Processing to me, we process automobiles. We shred them. We have a 4,000
horsepower shredder. And we can shred an automobile in about 30 seconds and
we produce fist-sized pieces of scrap metal, which is exported and used by steel
mills in manufacturing new steel and new steel products.
Processing defluid, decanting of the vehicles, taking the fluids out of the vehicles,
is not in our permit. We're not allowed to take vehicles with fluids, so other
processors on Oahu decant the vehicles before they bring 'em to us.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for Mr. Banigan?
MR. BANIGAN: I'd like to just ask if anyone knows, can you decant vehicles on M-l
zoned property?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-MR. BANIGAN: Because I believe, if I'm not mistaken, there was an automobile parts
business over here, Maui Foreign Auto Wreckers, that was on M-l zoned property
and that's exactly what they did.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Um-MR. BANIGAN: And they were issued, if I'm not mistaken, issued a Solid Waste Permit
from Department of Health.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay, Mr. Arakawa, can you answer the question?
MR. ARAKA W A: Our understanding, Mr. Chair, is that to do automobile processing,
we would need M-2 zoned property, which is heavy-industrial zoning, to do that.
And that was part of the discussion, which took place with the Committee earlier,
regarding the M-2 zoned property.
As far as the business that you had referred to previously, I believe the
documentation, which was submitted to the Department of Health, at that time,
showed that that business had appropriate zoned property. However, that
paperwork apparently was incorrect, and the Department of Health later rescinded
their approval.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
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MR. BANIGAN: So you cannot, you cannot remove fluids from M zoned, M-l zoned
property?
MR. ARAKAWA: No, we can store unprocessed and processed vehicles on M-l zoned
property, but we would need M-2 zoned property to process.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Arakawa. Thank you, Mr. Banigan.
MR. BANIGAN: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Members, at this time, the Chair would like to call a IS-minute
break, and when we come back from break, we'll talk about enforcement. So
recess until 10:30 ... (gavel) ...
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

10:18 a.m.
10:3S a.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... (gavel) .. The Public Works Transportation [sic] meeting is
hereby reconvened. Thank you, Members, for that break. At this time I'd like to
call up, up Captain Fontaine, as well as Mr. Vila or Mr. Kalbert Young. (long
pause) Thank you for being here this morning. In regards to enforcement, you
know, there are lot of concerns out in the public in regards to, you know, what are
we doing in regards to the vehicles that are parked on the side of the road. You
know, we see the orange stickers. Are we going after the people that are leaving
these cars behind? So if you could, Captain Fontaine provide us with some
comments?
MR. FONTAINE: Thank you, Chairman. Good morning, everyone. You know, the
issue with abandoned and derelict vehicles has been an ongoing problem for the
Department in terms of enforcement. By citing a vehicle for being abandoned
doesn't necessarily require, or, in fact, it doesn't require the owner to move it. So
even though it's been cited and we put lots of tickets on the cars or whatever the
case may be, there's no requirement. So it's a big hurdle for us because we can't,
you know, order the person to necessarily move it. We can cite them and then
whether or not they're actually prosecuted.
A number of times these cars have notices, transfer is pending where the
ownership has maybe even changed hands two or three times before we actually
get to it. And we're also seeing a disturbing trend of where people are perhaps in
tow businesses they are actually abandoning vehicles on the road. And this
becomes also very problematic for us in terms of enforcement because in
consulting with the Prosecutor's Office, the burden of proof, of showing that these
operators are actually doing these kinds of activities, we actually need to have
witnesses that actually see them unloading this car onto the roadway. And most
people don't blink an eye at seeing a tow truck on the side of the road with a car,
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whether they're unloading or loading it, people don't really pay much notice to
that. So that becomes an issue.
We did put a Crime Stoppers bulletin recently in the paper to try to even address
that to see if we could get some people to come forward about these vehicles
being, perhaps being abandoned by some tow companies.
You know, back in May when this issue really kind of came to the head, I had
several meetings in the Mayor's Office about this, and one of the things I did was,
we have a Crime Reduction Unit in District 1 in the Wailuku Patrol Division
that's under my command. And I took that Unit just for a test for one week to put
them on doing nothing but abandoned and derelict vehicles to try to see how
many of these could we actually find the owners and do something about these
cars. And we were going to try to do the whole island, but what we found was in
a week, we could only barely cover Wailuku and Kahului with the number of cars
that are out there. They documented something like 119 cases, and out of that
only 15 owners were actually contacted and cited for abandoned vehicle, while 35
other vehicles were only cited and the owner not being able to be found or
contacted. So that's kind of where the status is, and 1, I wanted to do that because
we've always talked about the fact, well, we can't find these guys. Well, I
actually wanted to see if we just spent a week doing it, if we could actually go and
find these people. And we can't. So that's where we're at. I mean, we, we try
our best and do what we can. We have some issues with some of these cars that
are in some hazardous locations. You know, especially where vehicles are
traveling at high speed. They're located near intersections where, especially the
one at, you know, of concern is the one by Maui Electric over there on North
Kihei Road. And some of these other ones, very concerned about, you know, tutu
driving down the road in the middle of the night and she happens to go off the
shoulder on to the right and then she rear-ends one of these cars. Where does the
liability come in on that kind of situation? Would we be liable because of the fact
we didn't remove that hazard from the road? Other vehicles that are located on
hairpins or turns and these kinds of things where they've been abandoned.
On-going issues, so that's where we are right now with the Department and if you
have any questions-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Young, any comments inregards to enforcement?
MR. YOUNG: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Good morning, Members. As Captain Fontaine
has pointed out, there is a difficulty in tracking down last registered owners for
the, for majority of abandoned or derelict vehicles. Department of Finance has a
single staff person who works on coordinating the tow orders, receiving the calls,
notifications from the Police Department for location of the vehicles. And this
person is also responsible for, to the best of her ability, to track down last
registered owners and to notify them that they are by law responsible for the
expense of the County to remove these vehicles from the road.
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As Captain Fontaine has pointed out, this is a, quite a cumbersome task for a
single staff person to do, involves quite extensive investigation and research
methods, and, frankly, she just does not have time to do that in addition to all the
more pressing matters of getting these vehicles off the road. And even when she
does do it, she's actually hampered by the fact that records are not current as to
the last registered owner.
So the Department of Finance has had a difficult time, to say the least, in terms of
pursuing a level of enforcement at the departmental level, within the Department
of Finance. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Young. Members, question for either
Captain Fontaine or Mr. Young? Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Maybe the Captain or Corporation Counsel. Who's
currently responsible to process the change of registration? The current owner or
the seller? Maybe I should say, the buyer or the seller of the vehicle?
MR. FONTAINE: The seller of the car usually files a notice of transfer pending with
Department of Motor Vehicles and then the new buyer is required to go down and
then register that vehicle.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Does this system work? Do we need to maybe
change the ordinances or laws to maybe make it more ... shall we make the past
or the previous owner more responsible to ensure the proper transfer is
completed?
MR. FONTAINE: The, the issue that comes up with that is that when the seller sells the
vehicle, he mayor may not know who that individual is and whether he does it.
There are existing laws for registering your vehicle for insurance and for all of
those things so that if the vehicle is stopped by an officer on the roadway for, say,
an expired safety sticker, expired tax, at that point, that person who was ever
driving the vehicle would be issued the citations. Even though the notice of
transfer pending comes up and he says, oh, I don't own the car or whatever, if
he's lying, doesn't matter. We give the citations to the person who is operating
the vehicle at that time. And then if that person isn't the real owner, then he can
give the citations to whoever, whoever the real owner is and that kind of puts the
burden on that operator at that point to get that person, whoever that person is, the
owner, to take care of it and to get that vehicle registered.
And that's quite often, when you see these Maui cruisers, you know, we find
them. That's how they usually pop up as we see 'em. And that's usually when
they start getting abandoned, is when they start accumulating tickets, and when
the cars are really illegal, then they just dump 'em and pick up another one for six
or seven hundred bucks and buy another car.
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And I'd like to just make one point, too, about difficulty on, for the Department
with in terms of categorizing abandoned and derecle ... , derelict vehicles because
there is a difference. Abandoned vehicles, and Finance can get into this more
deeply, but there's a requirement on their end to actually store the cars, try to get
in contact with the owner and all that and then, perhaps do an auction I believe.
Derelict, we can just deal with it, so we have to be very careful when the officer
goes out and he identifies that car, whether it's abandoned or whether it's derelict.
And that becomes sometimes problematic. Some of 'em are very obvious and
others are not.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. You know, sometimes I feel like we're the
cause of some of the derelicts, too, because we've been talking in the public of
how to identify these vehicles. And, obviously, there are those that take to heart
what you share with us because now it's harder to get identification done on these
derelicts.
But, nonetheless, we have a problem, and I take driving as a privilege, not a right.
So I don't have a problem making sure that enforcement side is supported as best
as we can, including increasing penalties. Because, you know, I've had a, the
benefit of going to many different municipalities, and I gotta tell you, Maui,
we've got some of the worse drivers in the country. Worse drivers. And I
commend your Department for doing its best with difficult situations, Captain.
Are there other suggestions you can give us as a legislative body on
considerations, whether it be through penalties, citizens on patrol type of
program? You know, I'm very open to your recommendations?
MR. FONTAINE: I've always been a big supporter of doing a powerful blend of positive
and negative incentives, you know, in dealing with the public, as well as my own
staff, and motivating behavior in a way that gets things done. And sometimes we
focus on the negative, in terms of penalties, but we also have to look at the
positive things that we can do to encourage people to change their behavior and
do the right thing. So I would say, to support us, that would be a big help is to
look at positive incentives that the legislature can do to encourage people to do
the right thing, versus us looking at ways to hammer people and give 'em more
citations.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
MR. FONTAINE: Let's look at other things that we can do to encourage people to do the
right thing.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Do you have colleagues in other departments that
have ... can you give us a suggestion? What would be one of those positive
inducements?
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MR. FONTAINE: I think any way that you can encourage people to take their cars and
recycle them responsibly, either through some type of reward system or, you
know, financial is always a big one. You know, if people know that they can
recycle the car for free and do the right thing, or perhaps even make a few dollars
for their efforts to do that. I think in the long haul, when you look at the amount
of man-hours that we're putting in to citing these cars and the overtime that's
involved in like the white goods and all of this stuff, you're spending the money
anyway. You might as well spend it and put it to people and put it, put it in
people's pockets.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I appreciate your comments, Captain. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Molina.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. You know, Captain Fontaine, you,
earlier you mentioned that there's a possibility that some of these tow busi ... ,
businesses are out there that are, may be partly responsible. But, obviously, it's,
you know, hard to prove, but, you know, the Department must have had some
type of grounds to, you know, come up with that assessment. And, you know, I
find it disturbing that, you know, we have businesses that are contributing to the
problem.
Have we done anything to remind all of our towing businesses about what they're
subjecting themselves to if they are committing these atrocities, if you will? I
don't know if maybe Mr. Young can comment on that. Because I'm trying to,
I'm trying to think of a multi-prong, -pronged approach to this problem. It's not
just, you know, only the Finance Department's or the Police Department's, it's
going to take everybody to try and, you know, solve this problem.
Have we sent any, you know, I know the Police Department sent out the Crime
Stoppers thing to people to try and help reduce this problem. Anything being
done, at least through Finance, to remind all towing company owners about what
they're subjecting themselves to if they are committing these crimes?
MR. YOUNG: Mr. Molina, the Department of Finance has not sent out any formal
notice to tow operators in this regards. They have been I guess informally just
reminded. This issue about the tow trucks, tow companies as potential instigators
of the problem, it, the Department of Finance has been, become aware of it be
through some reports or I guess other tow companies claiming their competitors
are doing that type of operations. Also the Police Department can confirm, but
we have been notified of several situations where a derelict vehicle will pop up on
a spot on a roadway like virtually overnight. And the difference between an
abandoned and a derelict vehicle is that a derelict vehicle doesn't op ... , does not
run. So a lot of times these vehicles will show up in a location. How did they get
there, unless they're towed there or some of these vehicles are essentially pretty
much stripped. No tires, no ... you know, you couldn't say tow your neighbors'
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vehicles there to the side of the road and drop it off. It has to be professionally
lifted there. So there is some merit, I would say, to these accusations. But the
difficulty is that no one has any hard proof or eyewitness oversight, so the
Department of Finance, while we haven't really issued any formal notice to tow
companies, we are at least aware of it. The Police Department is also aware of it
as well.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Uh-huh. Okay, thank you for those comments. I don't know
what it would take, maybe putting a bounty or something? This is getting really
crazy out there. It really is crazy. It just seems like you take one car off the road,
then, like you said earlier, another one pops up.
My next question, Mr. Chair, is the, have we been getting any support or
assistance from the automobile dealerships here on Maui? Because, after all,
these are the people that sell the cars to people and maybe some assistance, like
tracking down owners? You know, have we had any support from, from that
segment of the community? And is the County or the Administration looking at
seeking some support?
MR. YOUNG: No, Mr. Molina, we haven't had, we haven't' had, nor have we
approached the automobile dealerships for any type of assistance in that regards.
All the records in regards to past ownership is actually most complete in the
Department of Finance. Even far and above that of dealership records.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: So you don't see any additional help dealerships could provide
the County? With identifying vehicle owners?
MR. YOUNG: Not in that regards. The majority of these vehicles, a vast majority of up,
up, you know, nearly all of them, in fact, are going to be rather aged vehicles.
And usually there's a multiple chain of custodies for the vehicles themselves. So
it's already surpassed that of which the information that the dealer ownership
could provide us.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. Captain Fontaine, I,
too, appreciate the Department's efforts in dealing with this, this grave nuisance
that has plagued our County. In, in trying to find the actual owners of these
vehicles, you know, you mentioned that you were able to find some owners. In
doing that, was, were they prosecuted? Were the owners prosecuted or what is
the fine and penalties that they pay currently?
MR. FONTAINE: These, the owners were cited for, in the cases where appropriate, were
cited for abandoned vehicle. I don't have any information about whether they

PW06113105

Page 31

plead guilty or whether there's pending court action with any of those particular
individuals.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Say, for a derelict vehicle, then, would you have an idea
of what the, what the fine or the penalty is for leaving it on the side of the road
and having the County tow it away?
MR. FONTAINE: You know, it depends with the derelict vehicle, if it was, for example,
placed there by like a tow company. We could actually go--and I would have to
confer with the Prosecutor's to be sure--but we could actually go on a criminal
littering complaint, which would be, you know, like a $500 fine if we could prove
that. There are some different ways that we can approach, you know, that
particular situation. The fines for abandoned vehicle are ... it's not more than
$250 for the fine.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Oh, okay. So with the $250, could that be compounded
with the fine to litter the highway, the additional $500, so you're looking at a
larger fine?
MR. FONTAINE: No.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Uh.
MR. FONTAINE: And all of those fines would be to the State. We don't-COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah.
MR. FONTAINE: --derive any revenue from those fines.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah, yeah. Once again, yeah, which is why, you
know, we continue to do their job, and they continue to let us pay for it so . " But
in your discussion with the Prosecutor's Office, Captain, was any
recommendations or suggestions made insofar as putting teeth into enforcement?
Or even drafting new legislation for consideration that could hamper individuals
from considering dumping their vehicles?
MR. FONTAINE: You know, I think the biggest issue was the fact that there is no
requirement in the law to have people who have abandoned their vehicles to
remove it, even if they've been cited. So, you know, that piece of legislation
would be a big help to us if we were able to cite and actually contact one of these
owners and tell them, okay, here's your citation. Now you have to move your car,
and if you don't, here's the graduated fine schedule for each day that that vehicle
remains on the road, as an example. Something along that line would be, give a
lot more teeth I think to the abandoned vehicle law than what we have presently.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, well, I'm looking forward, Captain, to the
Department coming up with a long-range plan because in part, I also see part of
the problem as our inability as a County to prepare accordingly. Because had we
had a site to drop off vehicles at, perhaps, and only perhaps, some of these
vehicles would not be on the roadway. So we've in part helped to create the
problem. So our responsibility is to provide the long-range planning actually
dealing with the more technical responsibilities of carelessness and just neglect
and littering of our County's highways. Thank you very much.
Corp. Counsel, insofar as drafting legislation with teeth, where would we need to
start? So it's just not a $250 fine ... (CHANGE TAPE) ... move the vehicle?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: But we could certainly work on improving the language
that's currently existing in the ordinance, as far as enforcement goes. But I think
we would need to tackle this problem of holding the proper person responsible. It
seems that we have provisions in place for recovering costs and for, you know,
the penalty, but we've had problems in identifying the responsible party. So I
think that, you know, in working in improving the language in our current Code,
we would need to focus on that, and I guess we could, you know, we could get
assistance from Finance and maybe Police. But it, in, I've had many discussions
on this topic, and it seems like that's the problem is we can't identify the person
to hold responsible. Because if we do, we already do have provisions in place,
you know, for enforcement.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Uh. Okay, thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Question, Corp. Counsel, in regards to the fine themselves, I
know most of the money goes to the State, so you say that we can recover our cost
in regards to whatever man-hours that we put into the citation?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: The County, in Chapter 20 of the Maui County Code--this
is our litter, littering chapter--does allow the County to recover the cost of
removing litter. And also there's a penalty. I think it's between $100 and $1,000
for each offense. The other provision that was mentioned earlier has to do with
abandoned vehicles and that's a separate section under Hawaii Revised Statute.
And that has separate provisions in it and then the fine for that is $150 to $500.
And I'm not sure if this was, this one discusses about the penalty being going, go,
this penalty going to the State or not, but I can look into that.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, I wanted to ask the Police Department.
Maybe the Captain can come up. At one time, any vehicle over ten years needed
a safety check every six months and then we changed the law. Do you recall the
reason why we changed the law?
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MR. FONTAINE: No, sir, I don't ... why it was done.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
information?

Mr. Young, do you know?

Do you have any

MR. YOUNG: Mr. Hokama, I don't know why we changed the law. I'm looking to
Mr. Vila if he knows why we changed ... No?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Maybe I would say your Department, Mr. Young,
might want to review and see if that makes sense again. Because one way is for
the Police Department to cite vehicles with no current safety checks. And it
appears the majority of what is either abandoned or considered derelict is
definitely over ten-year old vehicles. And so if they are required to come in for
regular six-month inspections and certification that might be one way to approach
this problem. And if not, then the Police has the authority, seeing any vehicle on
the public road system without a proper safety check can cite, cite the driver in the
vehicle right then and there. And if it doesn't have it, well, pay the price. I don't
know. Any comments, Captain?
MR. FONTAINE: I think that by doing so we'd have to take a look at how many people
with vehicles over ten years of age that would be impacted by this negatively by
requiring them to get their car safety inspected twice a year and that cost versus
the number of people who own those vehicles that will eventually abandon them
on, on the side of the road. So although you create a mechanism in place, on one
hand, to perhaps have more requirements to safety inspect, but then on the other
hand, you're also putting a penalty on other people that have older vehicles-classics or whatever the case may be--and having them have an incurred cost, a
double cost of having that vehicle safety inspected on a yearly basis. So they'd be
getting inspected twice versus the one time that everyone else.
Also, I don't know how that would work with other counties or other vehicles that
come in from other counties that don't have that requirement. And then in the
future, we'll also have to deal perhaps with the ferry and those vehicles coming in
and if we're going to safety inspect our vehicles differently than the rest of the
State and how that would work out. So I think there are potentially some issues
with it. I mean, it's a great idea, you know. Get them in to come in more and all
that, but there's also a reactionary thing to that as well.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Gee, you gave me a frightening Image of other
counties dumping their cars in Maui County.
MR. FONTAINE: It could work both ways, though.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Maybe we need to ship our cars to the other counties,
then.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Maybe we can do that.

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: But, again, Chairman, you know, our goal is to be
responsible for our community with our residents. That's our goals and our
responsibility including the departments. And I think we, Maui County has never
shied away from doing what is right for Maui County, even when it goes against
the grain of the State or our sister counties. It has not stopped this County in the
last 50 years that I know of of doing what is best for Maui, and I expect us to
continue to do it that way, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. In regards to your questioning, we'll
send a letter to the Police Department as well as to the Finance Department for
some kind response in regards to what happened to the six-month vehicle
re-registration so that, you know, we get some good answers, pros and cons, in
regards to why now it's on an annual basis. So thank you for that question.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I think the Captain brought up some good points
regarding the potential impacts of the-CHAIR PONTANILLA: -Exactly.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --ferry. Of the ferry.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And my only comment is before you put 'em on the
ferry, you make sure you fulfill all jurisdictional requirements of where the car is
going to end up at. And if it's not then fine the ferry. I don't have a problem with
that.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Me, too. Members, any more questions for Captain Fontaine,
as well as Director Young? If not, thank you very much for being here this
morning discussing the issue in regards to enforcement.
Members, at this time, I don't have any other items on the agenda. So before I
defer this item, I'd like to ask, is anybody in the audience that would like to testify
now? This is your moment. Can you come forward? As you come forward, you
do have, Dr. Pang, you do have three minutes to testify, one minute to conclude,
and if you can state your name and the organization that you represent. And once
you're done, if you could go to the clerk's desk to sign up .
. . . BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY ...
MR. PANG: Okay, thank you. I'm Dr. Lorrin Pang. I'm the District Health Officer for
Maui County. I'll take less than three minutes. You know, it's unfortunate that I
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see these abandoned vehicles on the roadside, but you remember three years ago
when we were fighting Dengue, the vehicles were around people's homes.
We are getting reports of peoples reporting their neighbor's abandoning cars nears
homes and then along the roadsides for health reasons. Number one, there was
mosquito control, which they remembered from Dengue days, but it's not that
important now, the mosquito control from cars.
What is a little more concerning is rats. And we are going out, not a lot, but
enough to be annoying, to treat cars near people's homes and a little bit along the
roadside because of rats. The rats and Typhus and things like that.
So, I mean, while I, you know, I do respect what we're trying to do, keep them off
the roadside, once the cars go into gullies that, you know, Jan has to clean up or
stay around people's homes, that's another big issue and problem for us. So I'd
like to support some place to get people to take the cars to, just like we take our
recycled stuff, too. We will do it voluntarily if there's a place that we can take it
to.
Now you might say, well, that's the Department of Health blocking that because
you need permit. There is one, sometimes, where problems get overwhelming,
either for safety or health that you have to make contingency measures on a
short-term or you have to reach some understanding. But I certainly do not want
to return to those Dengue days where we were chasing cars near people's homes.
Cars near homes because of the food and rats and mosquitoes, that's a whole
different level problem. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Dr. Pang. Member Mateo.
question from Member Mateo.

Dr. Pang, have a

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Dr. Pang.
MR. PANG: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Good morning and thank you very much for your
comments. When the Department of Health issued the notice for closure for the
existing operation that was doing this particular service, were you able to provide
comment, your comments, to the Department of Health relative to what you just
testified this morning?
MR. PANG: Actually, no. I kind of heard about it second-hand. At that time when they
closed the {inaudible} park, we weren't having a car health problem, like in the
Dengue days. And I have to be quite honest, the Dengue days were car health
problem was a different administration, so maybe they didn't have that corporate
memory of what happened when cars were not disposed of properly. But I'm
here to remind people.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, well, thank you. I just wish that, you know, you
were able to also voice your comments prior to the closure because I think, you
know, we would really not be in a crisis as we are today had a continuum been
allowed and the opportunity for the Department of Health to work closely with
the County in alleviating the pressures that we're, we're kind of experiencing
now.
MR. PANG: And in fairness to everybody, we didn't quite see the car rat or car rodent
problem that we're seeing and treating now on an ad hoc basis--going out
poisoning around the vehicles. But not towing the vehicles, just treating the
vehicle and leaving it there, which is a little disconcerting.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah.
MR. PANG: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Dr. Pang. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Dr. Pang. Mr. Parsons.
MR. PARSONS: Thank you, Chair, Committee Members. Rob Parsons. I wanted to
briefly encourage this Committee and the Administration as, as everyone seeks
solutions in a very tricky situation that many of us see as we drive each day.
I did not listen to the first hour of this meeting, so my apologies if this has
previously been covered. But I wanted to strongly encourage, particularly with
Captain Fontaine here, that he be provided the resources and manpower to
investigate some of the underlying causes of vehicles that we're seeing on the
road, particularly derelict vehicles. Those vehicles that wind up on the sides of
the road, which are already stripped of significant parts and fit the State definition
of what's a derelict vehicle.
And calls to my office, and I know having sat in on the Community Work Day
Program committee with Ms. Dapitan last Thursday, calls to their office as well,
would tend to reinforce that there are people that strongly believe where there are
parts operations, legal or illegal--probably illegal--that are stripping cars and then
by night are taking cars out to the side of the road as one of the Committee
Members alluded to earlier. And I would just encourage us to look at that ... you
know, I think if we can come in with enforcement and penalties, that that would
send a message to the rest of the people who might be engaging in that kind of
activity, and we might see a very significant reduction in the number of vehicles
on the side of the road.
And that's just one of many elements here that I know are contributing to this
overall problem. But I think it's a significant one. Thank you.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Parsons. Any questions for Mr. Parsons? If
not, thank you very much. Ms. Jan Dapitan.
MS. DAPITAN: Thank you, Chairman, Council Committee. The appliance amnesty
program boldly demonstrated that there's a lack of a system to keep control of
disposable, our disposal of bulk items on an on-going basis. This is what I hope
that you are, will not stop until that happens.
We're one of the very few, I'm sure, communities in the Country that does not
have this kind of simple thing from at least a junkyard. The littered vehicles are
all over, and I wanted to just say something about how it's affecting us and our
volunteers. We're working very hard on our Adopt-a-Roadway Program. It's
really hard to talk to community about taking care of two miles or a mile stretch
of roadway if there are derelict vehicles that have been sprayed for rats. And it's
hard to ask them to clean up the insides of these automobiles with a lack of
training to work with hazardous materials.
We're trying to tippy-toe around some of these problems and still continue to
fight the fight out there against litter. But within our litter ordinance, we have this
issue of derelict vehicles. These vehicles say to people that we are tolerant, even
laxed, when it comes to illegal dumping, health hazards, pollution from
contaminants, road safety, neighborhood degradation and no anti-litter ethic.
It's spreading and it's difficult now in terms of recruiting. It's summer. It's hot
and July 23 we have our next big clean up. We will hopefully, again, bring out
that loyal group and make a difference as they do day after day as they work. It
shows that this lawlessness against the community. We're also getting a lot of
reports about people in the parks cutting down trees, breaking public structures
like fences, irrigation systems, defacing signs, illegal dump sites, graffiti. Some
of this happens like the broken window syndrome. When you see one act of
something that is illegal and it seems like it's not taking or it's almost being
approved of because it's, there's no action taken, then it compounds and begins to
be more. So I think that whether there've been any statistics, Captain Fontaine,
would be interesting to look at. Are crimes increasing because of our appearance
now in terms of not caring. And I know you care, so it's just the appearance,
again, and we're looking at attitudes. With all these scattered random acts of
lawlessness, fragmented sites of pollution, why can't we get some kind of staging
area, some kind of emergency round up site so that we can begin to take care of
business.
MR. JENSEN: Three minutes.
MS. DAPITAN: It will take a bold action to do this. It was bold action when the
appliance amnesty was handled, and we could, we would need I think to process
about 2,000 cars. If it's costing us $350 per car, you, you can do the math. And
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they did something like this on Lanai, which was a small little part of it. Maybe
we can do something on Maui. How many cars have we brought in in the period
where none was left? How many new cars are coming in every day, and none are
taken, being taken care of. We used to work together on these solutions. We
used to try to help people who were in trouble. If it was a business, and especially
the only business in town, if it was a group of people who wanted to do the right
thing, and we would get them together and come up with some sort of a solution.
I guess, we the people out there, with our litterbags, want to know why.
MR. JENSEN: Four minutes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for testifier? Thank you,
again. Anyone else out there that want to testify? If not, Members, if there's no
objection, I'd like to close public testimony.
COUNCILMEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much .

. . . END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY ...
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Members, we had a very good discussion in regards to
abandoned vehicles as well as the white goods. And hearing from the
Department, I know the Department is trying to do all of ... well, the Department
and, and the Administration is doing all they can in regards to resolving this
abandoned vehicle problem. And I think we got lot of work to do in regards to
taking a look at the ordinances. We need to look at the rezoning at the Puunene
Airport to provide some space for Public Works to store these abandoned
vehicles. And surely we'd like to work with the Department of Health, and, in
turn, the Department of Health, if you could work with us in regards to this big
issue that we have on Maui.
So with that, Members, if there's no objections, the Chair would like to defer this
item. And the reason why for deferring is I want to ensure that we take care of
our abandoned vehicles as well as our white goods. This will keep focus on the
Committee, as well focus on the Administration that, you know, we're here to do
all we can to, to solve this issue that we have today here on Maui. So with that,
Members, if there's no objection, the Chair would like to defer this item.
COUNCILMEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTION.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much. This meeting is adjourned
ADJOURNED:

11:16 a.m.
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